## **Bessemer City Planning Board**

The Bessemer City Planning Board met in regular session on Monday, February 5<sup>th</sup>, 2024 at 6:00 PM in the Council Chambers of City Hall.

#### Members Present:

Chairperson, Bruce Absher, Board Members: Pamela Gladney, Wendy Burgess, Charlene Hill, Bryan Hoffman, Linda Willis, and Constantine Tsambouriney. City Staff Present: Development Services Officer, Nathan Hester, and City Clerk, Hydeia Hayes.

# Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum

Chairperson Absher called the Planning Board meeting to order and confirmed that a quorum was present (7/7). Chairman Absher welcomed the new board members.

#### Adoption of the Agenda

By motion of Charlene Hill and unanimous vote, the agenda was adopted with no revisions.

## **Planning Board Action Item**

By motion of Pamela Gladney and unanimous vote, minutes from the October 2, 2023 Planning Board meeting minutes were adopted. Property owners would like to rezone one parcel of land that is currently zoned Urban Residential to Urban Residential Conditional District to accommodate the development of a multifamily townhome community.

## **Planning Board Action Item**

Development Services Officer, Nathan Hester addressed the Board regarding a rezoning request from Development Solutions Group (DSG) on Yellowjacket Lane. The preliminary site plan for the development includes one parcel of land located within the incorporated Bessemer City limits and is assigned Gaston County Tax Parcel ID# 151678. The project site is approximately 6.26 acres and is currently vacant. The project parcel is surrounded by three public right of ways, Bess Town Rd. and M.L. Kiser Rd. that are currently maintained by the NCDOT and Yellow Jacket Ln. which is currently maintained by the City of Bessemer City. Applicant is proposing to develop the project site into a multifamily townhome community consisting of 76 residential units, two public rights of way to be dedicated to the city, five public alleyways' to be dedicated to the city, and approximately one (1) acre of open space.

Current regulations within section 2.8.C of the Bessemer City Land Development Code (LDC) state that no multifamily development is to be developed on a site larger than three (3) acres and that no more than eight residential units per acre may be developed. The purpose of the application by the developer for a conditional district is to request relief from the Bessemer City Land Development Code regulations on multifamily site regulations and density per acre regulations. The proposal of the site involves the construction of two, fifty-foot rights of way with an expected width of pavement at twenty four feet and five thirty foot alleyways' with an expected with of pavement at twenty feet. The two public rights of way will include sidewalks with curb and gutter and the alleyways will include only curb and gutter. All right of ways and alleyways will be dedicated to the city upon development completion. There are four points of primary ingress and egress to and from the development. Two points will access the development off of M.L. Kiser Rd. and two points will access the development off of Yellow Jacket Ln. There are three ancillary access points to the development off of Yellowjacket Ln. that will allow passenger vehicular access to three of the public alleyways. Street trees will be planted along the two primary right of way through the development site in accordance with the Bessemer City Land Development Code. No street trees are required along the alleyways. Remaining vegetative requirements will be met with newly planted trees within dedicated open space throughout the project site.

Drainage will be engineered according to the best management practices at the time of construction and will be handled through a curb and gutter system located within the proposed road right-of-way as well as one proposed sand filter for storm water management. The property is subject to adopted stormwater management guidelines and will have to be approved by the Gaston County Department of Natural Resources. Open Space requirements for the proposed site are 2.17 acres of open space. Applicant proposes approximately one (1.0) acres of open space. Applicant will be required to submit payment in lieu of open space to City of Bessemer City per the guidelines in section 4.8.D. of the Bessemer City Land Development Code a resolution can be reached between the applicant and the City of Bessemer City that is approved by the City Council as equally beneficial to the development or the city in relation to recreational space and its accessibility by the community.

According to the City of Bessemer City Land Development Code section 3.5.C. no landscaping buffer is required for adjacent properties land uses of multifamily and single family residential to the east, north, and west of the development site. A level C land use buffer will be required along the south side (Yellow Jacket Ln.) to screen the development from the civic/educational land use upon the adjacent property. A level C land use buffer is minimum 20' in width. Developer can choose to implement other screening options from the city's land development code as long as they meet the minimum requirements of a level C landscaping buffer.

The applicant has asked for the following areas of relief and conditions of approval:

1. The proposed development shall follow the requirements of the City of Bessemer City Land Development Code with the added relief of:

a. Allowing the development for multifamily use on one lot that is excess of three (3) acres.b. Allowing for twelve (12) units per acre, which is more than the density requirements of eight (8) units per acre stated within 3.2.A. of the city's LDC.c. Relief of the front setback regulation of fifteen (15') feet and allow a setback of anywhere between zero and five feet (0-5').

2. All other multifamily design standards stated within the City of Bessemer City Land Development Code (LDC) shall be adhered to.

- 3. The developer shall extend City of Bessemer City water and sewer to and within the site, at their expense. The development will be served by City utilities: water and sewer.
- 4. All off-site utility easements, if necessary to provide utilities to the site, must be obtained by the developer, at their expense, prior to approval of construction plans, issuance of permits, or commencement of construction.

5. Conditional Zoning approval is valid for a period of twenty-four (24) months from the date of approval.

Light discussion was held amongst Board members and Director Hester.

By motion of Pamela Gladney and unanimously vote, the following were recommended to be presented to City Council for consideration:

- Pursue Project of multifamily development on site with relief of 3 acre size limitation.
- Recommend reducing density to Land Development Code restriction of 8 units per acre.
- Recommend deny relief of decreased open space.
- Recommend developer meet required setbacks. No relief of setback requirements recommended.
- Recommend accepting dedication to City of Bessemer City of the two main right of ways within the development and recommend that alleyways remain privately owned and maintained by future HOA.

# **Old/New Business**

There was none.

#### <u>Adjourn</u>

By motion of Linda Willis and unanimous vote, the meeting adjourned at 6:58 PM.

Bruce Absher, Chairperson

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk